
May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

        At a regular meeting of the Southampton County Board of Supervisors held in the Board 
Room of the Southampton County Office Center, 26022 Administration Center Drive, Courtland, 
Virginia on May 29, 2012 at 7:00 PM.       

 
SUPERVISORS PRESENT 

Dallas O. Jones, Chairman  (Drewryville)  
Dr. Alan W. Edwards Vice-Chairman  (Jerusalem) 

Glenn H. Updike (Newsoms) 
Carl J. Faison (Boykins-Branchville) 

Barry T. Porter  (Franklin) 
Ronald M. West  (Berlin-Ivor) 

S. Bruce Phillips  (Capron) 
 

SUPERVISORS ABSENT 
None 

 
OTHERS PRESENT 

Michael W. Johnson, County Administrator (Clerk) 
Jon Mendenhall, Assistant County Administrator 

Lynette C. Lowe, Finance Director 
Sandi Plyler, Information Technology Manager 
Julien W. Johnson, Jr. Public Utilities Director 

Richard E. Railey, Jr., County Attorney     
Cynthia J. Edwards, Administrative Secretary 

 
Chairman Jones called the meeting to order.  After the Pledge of Allegiance, Supervisor Faison 
gave the invocation. 
 
Chairman Jones sought approval of the minutes for the Budget Workshop, March 28, 2012; the 
Budget Workshop, April 4, 2012; the Budget Workshop, April 11, 2012; the Budget Workshop, 
April 18, 2012; the Budget Workshop, April 23, 2012, the Budget Workshop, April 25, 2012 and 
the Regular Session of May 2, 2012.  Supervisor West made a motion to approve the minutes, 
seconded by Supervisor Edwards.  The motion was carried unanimously. 
 
Chairman Jones stated the next item of business was number two – highway matters. 
 
Mr. Joe Lomax, Residency Administrator for the Franklin Residency which includes Isle of Wight, 
Southampton, Sussex, and Greensville addressed the Board.  He stated he was here to talk to us a 
little bit about the U. S. Route 58 Project.  He gave the following presentation: 
 

 
 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

 

 
 
 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Supervisor West asked what is unbounded, bonded, four inches, and seven inches.  You 
said a whole lot of things the general public doesn’t understand. 
 
Mr. Joe Lomax said he didn’t either that is why they are having the public information 
session.  It has something to do with the tie into the existing surface.   
 
Supervisor West said so you don’t know the criteria for unbounded and bonded. 
 
Mr. Joe Lomax said no sir it will be on the email tonight and tomorrow morning. 
 
Supervisor West said but you are going to put seven inches or four inches on top of a bed 
of concrete already. 
 
Mr. Joe Lomax said yes sir. 
 
Supervisor West said really. 
 
Mr. Joe Lomax said yes sir; from what he understands it is done in squares with 
preselected places for crack control.  So hopefully we won’t have just in the square 
anywhere; there will only be cracks where they are designed to be so even if we have to go 
back and do patching later which you always have to do with concrete they won’t have to 
take out as much of the road. 
 
Supervisor West said during his working career in going to Emporia every day you patched 
and it was a network of this, but going to Greenbrier that concrete is just a smooth run the 
whole way on Interstate 64.  He said he didn’t understand the difference because this up 
here is irregular. 
 
Mr. Joe Lomax said for one thing that at Greenbrier was a brand new project. 
 
Supervisor West said this Hwy. 58 was too a few years ago. 
 
Mr. Joe Lomax said he wasn’t here when that was done.  He had just patched this out here 
on Hwy. 58.  He said there is a difference between patching.  The second thing that they 
did at Greenbrier is they milled and smoothed it after they finished; so they machined it 
afterwards.  He said he asked specifically that question a few years ago in Emporia.  In this 
case he is not sure what the requirements are, but he will ask about milling and machining.  
He knows they had a plant on site and actually created the concrete on site on Interstate 64 
so they had everything right there and they did shave it.  It amounts to shaving the 
irregulars out of concrete.  It will never be perfect; but if you shave it with that machine 
you can shave it down to 100th of an inch he thought.  That is something we haven’t had, 
but he said he would ask about the possibility of using that machine. 
 
Supervisor West said he wasn’t going to beat a dead hog over this thing, but it would be 
nice to see it smooth and well finished.  He thanked Mr. Joe Lomax 
 
Chairman Jones asked if anyone else had any questions or concerns. 
 
Supervisor West said he thinks they had started mowing – was that correct. 
 
Mr. Joe Lomax said yes sir. 
 
Supervisor West asked where and when.  He said three times this summer he was told by 
Mr. Jerry Kee.  You know just a thought, Mr. Lomax you did a good job throwing the stuff 
out of the ditches where you could throw it in open fields.  He said he knew Mr. Lomax 
was not able to use it along the wooded land; however that being said now this straw and 
weeds are so tall they are half way up his waist and you have go there and you have an 
interesting thing to do.  You send a tractor through and then you send another one to 
dissimulate and you are chunking that stuff back in the ditch that just got dug.  He said he 
didn’t understand a lot of things, but he finds it remarkable to let the weeds and things get 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

so high and then cut it and then push it back in the ditch that you just cleaned out. 
 
Mr. Joe Lomax said there are two things.  He focused on the roads this year so they did get 
behind on the mowing and ditches.   You may have noticed they had more pipes installed 
along the ditches on Kellos Mill and Hwy. 666.  He said he was spending more time on the 
surface and less on the aesthetics so he would take that hit.  They plan on catching up on 
the mowing.  He said he would find out why they are throwing it back.  Also they do have 
a contractor that is cutting the primaries and some of the secondaries.  He said they were 
dissatisfied and probably if the contractor didn’t tighten up they are probably going to have 
to get rid of him and go back to doing it themselves until they put out another bid because 
he has been in Southampton for three weeks now and he has three counties to do.  So it is a 
combination of things and he said he would go back and check into it.  One of the reasons 
they were behind was because he was pushing them to get some of the paving, pipework, 
and ditching done.  He said that was his fault.  He was trying to focus on the structure of 
the road and get in front of some of these contractors we have coming in here for surface 
treatments.   
 
Supervisor Phillips said on Popes Station Road west of the intersection with Cary’s Bridge 
Road there is a dead pine tree that is on the left side of the road.  He said he put wto bands 
of pink tree flagging around it, but it is leaning to the road and is going to start dropping 
limbs pretty soon.  It has been there since Hurricane Isabelle.   
 
Mr. Joe Lomax said they were going to get the contractor back in here.  He said they had a 
contractor that comes in here about every two months and they would get it taken care of. 
 
Supervisor Phillips thanked Mr. Joe Lomax. 
 
Supervisor Updike said he had expressed his concerns to Mr. Joe Lomax and he is going to 
take care of it tomorrow.  When you talk to the head boss you feel like it is going to be 
done. 
 
Chairman Jones thanked Mr. Joe Lomax. 
 
Chairman Jones stated the next item of business was reports.  There were the following 
reports:  Financial Report, Sheriff’s Office, Animal Control, Litter Control, Building 
Permits and Treasurer’s Report. 
 
Mr. David Britt, Treasurer, addressed the Board.  He said he wanted to give a monthly 
update on where we are on our collections.  Currently they are getting started with the 
booting program and they have booted 84 vehicles in the last 30 days bringing in about 
$24,000.00.  They have also done some liens in the last two weeks since he had gotten 
some part time help for the summer.  Over the last 30 days they have collected $304,000 
dollars and of that $219,000 dollars is personal property and $84,000 is real estate.  He 
stated at the last meeting Supervisor Porter had some questions concerning the sales of the 
property we hadn’t been able to collect the taxes on.  From non-judicial sales they were 
able to collect on one property $893.00, but they were also able to bring in an extra 
$2,000.00 surplus from items after they have been in escrow for two years.  Some of the 
other properties did not bring enough to cover the taxes which we still collected $1,483.00 
so we are looking at having to write that off; however with the $2,000.00 we will still be to 
the good in a couple of years.  He stated we had one other property that will bring us about 
$1,000.00 and maybe a little bit of surplus.  As far as judicial sales it was the same thing 
there.  Some of the properties brought us home and some did not.  His estimation is that we 
will collect about $12,681.00 off the judicial sales and probably lose and have to write off 
about $9,800.00 dollars.  In the same sense one property did bring in an additional 
$34,352.00 that will go into escrow for a two year period.  If no one claims that it will 
revert over to the county.  He asked Supervisor Porter if that cleared up the questions he 
had. 
 
Supervisor Porter said yes.  He asked if these properties were back on the tax rolls now. 
 
Mr. David Britt said yes so hopefully someone will be paying the taxes on them on a 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

yearly basis. 
 
Supervisor Porter said he assumed the assessments were higher than the sale prices. 
 
Mr. David Britt said yes. 
 
Supervisor West asked didn’t he understand that Mr. David Britt said some time ago that 
booting on real estate delinquency would be taking place or is taking place.  He asked what 
was the status. 
 
Mr. David Britt said it can be done.  It is a more tedious process because real estate 
properties do not have social security numbers associated with them like personal property.  
So if you have John Doe you have got to make sure that it is the right John Doe before you 
go out there and boot his car for real estate taxes.  You have got to make sure that you have 
the right John Doe.   
 
Supervisor West said he would think that on any of them.  
 
Mr. David Britt said that was right, but the social security number helps in making sure 
you have the right John Doe. 
 
Supervisor West asked as far as delinquent taxes what percentage would you say is real 
estate and what percentage is personal property.   
 
Mr. David Britt said that was in the handout he gave them tonight.  There is $663,000 
outstanding in personal property and $802,000 outstanding in real estate 
 
Supervisor West asked what page that was on. 
 
Mr. David Britt said on the fourth page. 
 
Supervisor West said he hadn’t seen this until tonight. 
 
Supervisor Edwards said it looks like everybody has found out that we are getting real 
serious about it, the word is getting around, and you guys are doing a good job so we are 
getting some of this back. 
 
Mr. David Britt said hopefully we can get the programs going more full steam and bring in 
a few more dollars in the next couple of months. 
 
Other reports were New Housing Starts, Solid Waste Quantities, Cooperative Extension 
and Personnel. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson stated that we had three personnel changes to report for the month.  
We had one resignation effective May 4, 2012 in the Inspections Department.  There were 
two separations in the Sheriff’s Office:   Jody L. Brown effective May 3, 2012 and Tyrece 
D. Scott effective May 7, 2012. 
 
Chairman Jones stated we would move on to item number four – financial matters. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson stated that item A is a copy of the proposed budget synopsis, as 
advertised in the Tidewater News on May 6.  If you continue with the schedule set forth at 
your January meeting tonight is the night to take action on that.  A motion is required to 
adopt the FY 2013 annual budget as attached (page 4-3), or as may be amended from the 
floor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Chairman Jones asked what the Board had to say. 
 
Supervisor West made a motion that we adopt the proposed budget as advertised in the 
Tidewater News and any other local paper which has been heard and spoken of for some 
time in Southampton County. 
 
Supervisor Edwards seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Jones said he had a motion and a second and asked if there was any further 
discussion on this. 
 
Supervisor Faison said he has some concerns.  He said if you remember at the public 
hearing there was a lot of concern spoken about the school and the library.  Those are two 
things that the county certainly has taken advantage of and he would love to see this budget 
address those more.   



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Supervisor Updike said that everybody he talks to is saying some more money is coming 
down the road from the state.  He would like to make a motion that any additional funds 
that come in are used to pay off some of our debt.  We are over $70 million in debt and we 
are going to continue to go down- hill unless we do something to control our debt.  He 
made a motion that any additional funds that come in after the approval of the budget go to 
offset our debt service. 
 
Chairman Jones said we already have a motion on the floor we have got to deal with first. 
 
Supervisor West said you have a motion and a second to the original motion, but you don’t 
have a second to take the amended motion, correct. 
 
Mr. Richard Railey said unless the one who made the original motion withdraws it. 
 
Supervisor West said he was not going to withdraw it. 
 
Chairman Jones said he was going to take a vote on the original motion then he would 
address Supervisor Updike’s motion. 
 
Mr. Richard Railey said you can see if there is a second to Supervisor Updike’s motion. 
 
Chairman Jones asked if he had a second to Supervisor Updike’s motion. 
 
Supervisor Edwards said he would second Supervisor Updike’s motion because he would 
like to see what is involved.   
 
Chairman Jones asked Mr. Richard Railey if they could vote on them both together. 
 
Mr. Richard Railey said you vote on the amendment first.  What you are voting on is to 
amend the original motion. 
 
Supervisor West asked what monies they were talking about securing and holding. 
He asked if they were talking about anticipation of new school funds that may come down 
from the State of Virginia. 
 
Supervisor Updike said he was talking about any additional funds that come down from 
any state or federal source.  We can offset it and designate it as XYZ then the same amount 
of money will be withdrawn from the county support. 
 
Supervisor West said the debt is well leveraged.  The debt is going to be paid off in a 
structured manner over a period of time.  There is no reason whatsoever to delve into that.  
If you have got $70,000 to put towards $70 million that is just not much.  He knows that 
every penny counts; he understands that real well.  He tells you that is the wrong approach 
when $70,000 may keep a teaching position or some fundamental thing going that we need 
going.  He thinks that is being too picky.  He will not support that. 
 
Supervisor Faison said he agreed 100%. 
 
Supervisor Edwards said we have got a budget and all of that is being supported.  We are 
talking about money outside of that.  He agrees with Supervisor Updike he wants to see 
what it looks like too. 
 
Supervisor Faison said would vote to earmark that right now.  Once it comes in we can 
make a decision on that without us doing at this point and having it already designated for 
something.  He disagrees with it. 
 
Supervisor Updike said if we don’t make a decision to do it tonight you can kiss it goodbye 
and you can kiss every effort to control spending down the drain. 
 
Supervisor Faison said that if it comes into the county the county has it regardless of where 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

it is used.  It is not kissed goodbye.  He thought we would put it to good use whenever the 
time arises for us to do that. 
 
Supervisor West said he thought every department and every organization that is supported 
by this Southampton County Government and through the tax process understands that 
there will be an extra eye, an extra look and to make sure that every dollar is spent wisely 
and as carefully as they can.  There is only so much that you can do in one year.  You can 
stop government if that is what your preference is.  It is not his reasoning to do that in any 
way.  He thinks you are counter-productive to do this right now.  He asked what 
anticipated funds are you talking about.  He asked Supervisor Updike if he had an inkling 
of, what have you heard, do you want to reveal that, is there anything that you will say at 
this time, sir. 
 
Supervisor Updike said according to all the information the representatives, the governor 
has $881 million dollars surplus to go around and he hadn’t been able to get a hold of how 
much appropriation was going to be divvied out to any group.  So if funds are coming, we 
can spend it wisely by paying off the debt.  We have got a budget.  I expect you to live 
within that budget that you are going to vote on tonight and not get excess funds that may 
be coming down the road and spend that.  Then next year you are going to be back in the 
same rut.  If we have x number of personnel and we use the governor’s surplus and then we 
have these people on board and that is happening over and over again.  If we don’t put in 
some restraints in some way, shape, or form we are lost. 
 
Supervisor Faison said we are going to be the same people down the road as we are 
tonight.  If we received something down the road he would want to look at it and evaluate 
it then.  He did not want to make a decision on it tonight. 
 
Chairman Jones said we have two motions on the floor.  He asked if there was any more 
discussion on this. 
 
Supervisor Porter said he was sitting here and trying to think of the big picture and see how 
it all fits together.  We are voting on the budget if we approve it we have all the 
appropriations to follow those.  Any additional monies that come into the county have to 
be appropriated prior to the usage.  One usage would be to pay down debt. 
 
Supervisor West said that is a possible usage. 
 
Supervisor Porter said yes that was a possible usage.  There are other possible usages.   
 
Supervisor West said sure. 
 
Supervisor Porter said he has no objection to paying down debt.  We are too much in debt.  
He said he hated it when he looked at the debt repayment schedule as we are looking at 
paying between $5.5 and $5.7 million dollars over the next five years.  That just 
hamstrings us.  Knocking $100,000 dollars off of that would be nice.  He is struggling with 
what the benefit of the amendment to the budget is.  He asked does it actually add value or 
is it redundant to something that we should do independently of approving the budget.   
 
Supervisor Updike said we need something to hold the feet to the fire that has already been 
approved so it cannot be taken and given to any group or anything or some whim that 
comes down the road in the future. 
 
Supervisor Porter said he would be open to this.  We pass the budget and any additional 
funds that come in have to be balanced against what funds we give the different operations 
in the county.  If someone gets an additional half million dollars which he doesn’t think 
they will, but if they get $10,000 then any local funds by the county would be reduced by 
$10,000.  He doesn’t know at this point without knowing the big picture that he can 
support paying the debt down.  If at the time we get some funds paying the debt is the right 
thing to do at that time then we should pay it down.  If we have some additional expense 
maybe that would be the appropriate thing to do with it. 
 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Supervisor Edwards said that may be the appropriate word. 
 
Supervisor Phillips said we have a line item of operating efficiencies at $452,262.  If we 
vote for this amendment we are going to jump right over top of that.  That money has to be 
okayed.  He said he thought we were stepping toward what we set our goal for as this 
budget; otherwise we would be backing up again.  He agrees we need to pay down our 
debt.  He is absolutely 100% in favor of that, but with this line item here he thinks they 
have got to find that money whether it comes from the state or from operating efficiencies 
that they establish ongoing from this night on to balance this budget as it is passed tonight. 
 
Supervisor Updike said he interpreted it in different ways.  He said that money that is 
saved by making government more efficient; there are monies that he is talking about 
coming into the county.  So it is two different ballgames.  One is operating more efficient 
and the other is getting funds from other sources. 
 
Supervisor Porter said let him offer another alternative.  Let’s have it in there if additional 
funds from state and federal sources come in, and this may be redundant,  before those 
funds can be used or appropriated they have to come before the Board for a decision.  
 
Supervisor Faison said he agreed with that.   
 
Chairman Jones said that is going to happen anyway.  That’s just the way it works it comes 
to us anyway. 
 
Supervisor Porter said this is just formalizing it or making clear that if the Sheriff’s Office 
gets $50,000 more in funds that is coming from the budget of the state he doesn’t have the 
authority to spend $50,000.  That money has to come before the Board to be appropriated 
prior to any of that money being spent. That may be redundant, but it sends a clear message 
to everybody that the money we have in this budget is what we are appropriating and 
authorizing you to spend not any additional funds and then come before this Board hoping 
we are going to forgive you for spending it.  We are not going to forgive you for spending 
it.  It is just to make it clear. 
 
Chairman Jones asked if everybody was clear on this. 
 
Supervisor West said no. 
 
Supervisor Edwards said there is absolutely nothing wrong with that.  What we are just 
saying is we have a budget, if any extra money comes in we simply want it to run by us to 
see where it needs to be spent. 
 
Chairman Jones said well that is going to happen. 
 
Mr. Richard Railey said you have got a motion and now you have an amendment to the 
motion. 
 
Chairman Jones said he had three motions. 
 
Supervisor West said you only have an amendment to a motion with a second to it.  And 
the last one was just a rephrasing of the amendment.  That was not another motion. 
 
Supervisor Porter said he was simply offering an alternative to the wording of it. 
 
Mr. Richard Railey said the first question would be does the party who made the amending 
motion and the party who seconded it yield to the interpretation. 
 
Chairman Jones said let’s past the budget and then deal with the amendment. 
 
Supervisor Faison asked if they could pass it before you have the amendment attached to it 
first. 
 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Mr. Richard Railey said if you don’t yield to the amendment then you are going to have to 
have to vote the first amendment either up or down. 
 
Chairman Jones asked Supervisor Updike if he would yield. 
 
Supervisor Updike said the answer is no because if we don’t make some effort in the form 
of an amendment that we have got to do it then it is just going to be hogwash. 
 
Supervisor Edwards asked can we not vote on the budget and then vote on the amendment. 
 
Mr. Richard Railey said you are going to have to take care of the amendment first. 
 
Chairman Jones said let’s go with the amendment first.  He asked if there were any more 
questions before they took a vote.  He called for a vote on Supervisor Updike’s 
amendment.  The motion was lost.  Now he said they would go to the budget. 
 
Supervisor Porter said he would like to present his revised amendment and maybe it was 
redundant but it makes it clear to everybody that any additional funds that come in do not 
get spent.  
 
Supervisor Phillips said before coming before this Board. 
 
Supervisor Porter said the budget you are getting is the budget you are getting from us.  
Any additional money that comes in has to come before the Board for a formal vote before 
any action is taken with respect to that money. 
 
Mr. Richard Railey asked if he got a second to his motion 
 
Supervisor Edwards said yes that he was seconding it. 
 
Chairman Edwards said that was seconded.  He said they would vote on Supervisor 
Porter’s motion that any extra money coming to the county would have to come before the 
Board before it is spent.  He asked if there were any further question before they took a 
vote.    
 
Supervisor Faison said if money comes in that is earmarked for a certain department we 
can’t say that money doesn’t go to that department so what recourse are we talking about. 
 
Supervisor Porter said we can rescind the funds that we have given that department. 
 
Supervisor Faison asked after we approve the budget we can rescind the funds that we have 
appropriated for a department. 
 
Supervisor Porter said we can at the end of this. 
 
Supervisor Faison asked can we do that.  After you approve a budget and give a 
department a certain amount of money can we rescind the funding. 
 
Mr. Richard Railey said yes isn’t that the way you interpret it Mr. Michael Johnson. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson said yes.  Keep in mind that you typically do a semi-annual 
appropriation in June starting in July and you do a second semi-annual appropriation in 
December for the second half of the fiscal year.  So obviously you are not appropriating all 
the funds so if a grant came in in November you would simply reduce the December 
appropriation by a compromable amount to accomplish what Supervisor Porter suggested.  
The problem may come in if a grant comes in very late in the fiscal year, say in May or 
June, and you have already appropriated the local funding.   
 
Chairman Jones asked Supervisor Faison if he understood that.  He asked if everyone was 
ready to vote on Supervisor Porter’s motion which carried unanimously. 
 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Chairman Jones stated now we would vote on the budget.  The budget motion carried with 
Supervisor Updike voting nay. 
 
Chairman Jones stated we would move to item B. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson said item B is an ordinance which establishes the 2012 (FY 2013) tax 
levy.  It is on page 4-4 in your agenda.  It establishes a real estate tax rate of $0.75 and all 
the other local taxes remain the same.  
 

 
 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
Chairman Jones stated he needed a motion. 
 
Supervisor Phillips made a motion to adopt the ordinance establishing the 2012 annual tax 
levy. 
 
Supervisor Porter seconded the motion which carried unanimously. 
 
Chairman Jones stated we would move forward. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson said item C is an ordinance to establish the water, sewer, and solid 
waste fees for FY 2013.  A motion is required to establish the ordinance. 
 
 
 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
Chairman Jones asked if anyone had any questions. 
 
Supervisor Updike said he had one question.  He said it looks like the residents and the 
business that cost us over $800,000 for repairing the sewage system is only paying $1.50 
per 1,000 gallons.  He doesn’t think they are carrying their fair share of the water and 
sewage fees.   
 
Supervisor Edwards said it was the same percentage calculated.  It is around 8%. 
 
Supervisor Updike said there is a big problem with these percentages.  If you remember 
last year they gave a 2% salary increase.  The guys were making $130,000 and you’ve got 
$2,600 in benefits and $20,000.00 only got $400.00.  These percentages when they are 
going up are great but when it is coming down it is a horse of another color.  Using the 
percentages is not a fair way to increase or decrease salaries or cost because the low man 
on the totem pole isn’t carrying his fair share and will never carry  his fair share.   
 
Chairman Jones asked if here were any other comments on this.  He said if not he needed a 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

motion. 
 
Supervisor West made a motion that we establish the water, sewer, and solid waste fees for 
FY 2013 as presented with that 4,000 gallon base range and with the comment that the it 
sounds like the federal government is figuring that if you have something or the richer you 
are take it away from you and give it to somebody else.  He said he was sick of that 
judgment of the way doing it.  Businesses are what we need in this county and if the 
percentage is 8% it fits all sizes and everyone should go with that.  That is his personal 
opinion.  The motion is on the floor sir. 
 
Supervisor Porter seconded the motion.   
 
Chairman Jones asked if anyone wanted to discuss it further before they took a vote. 
Chairman Jones called for the vote which carried unanimously. 
 
Chairman Jones stated the next item was item D. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson stated that in item D. we have two appropriation resolutions for your 
consideration.  The first resolution provides a total appropriation of $547,773.43, all of 
which is associated with the General Fund.  This appropriation consists of a combination of 
expenditure refunds, reimbursements, and grants.  Revenues have been received from the 
sources indicated.  This appropriation includes $180,052.00 of “new money” that was not 
included in the adopted FY 2012 budget.  The majority of this (120,698) represents our 
state mandated share of providing services to at-risk children under the Comprehensive 
Services Act and the balance is associated with demolition of the Ivor Elementary School.  
A motion is required to adopt the attached appropriation resolution (page 4-10 and 4-11). 
 
 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
Chairman Jones asked if there were any questions on this appropriation resolution. 
 
Supervisor Porter asked of that $120,000 how much is local funds. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson said our local match rate is 32%.   
 
Supervisor Porter said about $40,000.00 
 
Mrs. Lynette Lowe said no this is the local share. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson said information is provided and asked Mrs. Lynette Lowe for the 
page number. 
 
Mrs. Lynette Lowe said page 4-9. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson said it is under comprehensive services act where it says increase the 
mandated CSA budget supplemental funds $244,099 and the local money is $120,698. 
 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Supervisor Porter asked how did we miss that much. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson said we don’t know.  According to what’s in here it all depends on 
what court ordered services and residential placements there are.  Some years that could be 
a big number. 
 
Supervisor Porter asked if we could have a surprise like that next year. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson said you could have a surprise like that any year. 
 
Supervisor West said that goes back to that distribution of money that we can receive and if 
tied back in one thing to reduce the debt then you have taken away your options to use it in 
appropriated ways and this has happened for a greater amount.  He remembers that. 
 
Supervisor Porter said so we don’t have a choice. 
 
Supervisor Phillips said you don’t have a choice. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson said it is state mandated. 
 
Chairman Jones asked if they were ready to adopt the resolution. 
 
Supervisor West made a recommendation to adopt the appropriation resolution as 
presented. 
 
Supervisor Faison seconded the motion which carried unanimously. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson said the second resolution provides a total appropriation of 
$10,156.00 and is related to the purchase of computer equipment, supplies and internet 
access for 3 Board members as we transition to paperless agendas beginning in FY 2013.  
A motion is required to adopt the appropriation resolution. 
 
Chairman Jones asked if there were any comments on this.  He said this is what you asked 
for.  He said he needed a motion; you asked for it. 
 
Supervisor Porter made a motion to adopt the appropriate resolution. 
 
Supervisor Edwards seconded the motion which carried unanimously. 
 
Chairman Jones stated the next item is the monthly bills.  He asked if anyone had any 
concerns with the bills. 
 
Supervisor Updike said he certainly does.  He has major concerns. 
 
Chairman Jones asked what were those concerns. 
 
Supervisor Updike said this invoice from the Timmons Group is a concern.  When a group 
comes before us and says they will do it the most efficient way to provide you services and 
they come up with an invoice like this of $12,000 for things done at the Turner Tract.  
There are charges for $125.00 for a manager, technicians which are the workers $85.00, 
soil scientist $85.00, mileage from six or seven different place, and meals.  It goes on and 
on.  He knows that there are people in here that went before the Board of Equalization 
because we disagreed with the assessments.  Over 600 parcels were under review.  He says 
with this bill from Timmons to go back and negotiate.  He personally, if this bill came to 
his home, he would not pay it until he had set down and negotiated a decent, fair, and 
equitable arrangement in price.  He said he doesn’t care what anybody says; he says not to 
pay this bill until a fair and equitable price can be made.  That is $12,000.00 in additional 
money on the Turner Tract.  This is an absolutely ridiculous bill.  He doesn’t know how 
many more ridiculous bills because this is the first time we have actually received an 
invoice.  The first time it just said we said so many thousands of dollars.  He says let’s 
negotiate.  Go back to the Timmons Group and say this bill is out of line. 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Chairman Jones asked if there were any other comments. 
 
Supervisor West said before the word meals gets misconstrued it is $5.75 so $5.75 for the 
record.  This bill has been incurred and he honestly believed future bills need to be looked 
at more diligently.  We need to get on with business.  This is an expense that has been 
incurred and we need to pay the bill tonight and move forward.  Your points are well taken.  
We need to pay our bills on time, sir. 
 
Supervisor Updike said if we pay bills that are inflated they will think that we will pay 
anything that comes down the turnpike and we will never get our bills under control.  We 
have got to start somewhere. 
 
Supervisor Edwards said he agreed that we need to pay the bills, but he also concurs that 
not a one of them up there knew what the heck they were paying this for.  He said he didn’t 
know if anyone setting up here tonight could tell him what they were buying here.   
 
Chairman Jones said the only thing he knew was that we had to have an engineer on the 
Turner Tract. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson said he could answer that question of course we have that on an 
agenda item later, but we can talk about it now we can.   
 
Supervisor Edwards said maybe to save time we go ahead and we need to pay this bill 
there is no way we can stop this. We have it coming up later for an extended discussion. 
 
Supervisor Porter said he wanted to ask one question first.  He wanted to know if we have 
anyone who authorizes these services or if the Timmons Group just decide when and how 
to do this. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson said most of the contracts with Timmons are lump sum agreements 
and they have a specified scope of work.  This particular contract related to this billing is a 
time and material contract that is why you see the breakdown on the reimbursable items, 
the breakdown on the time with the hourly positions.  We will talk about that, but this is 
the one contract that is time and material.   
 
Supervisor Updike said one thing that bugs the life out of him in this whole shebang is that 
this money doesn’t come here and stay in the county; it is going to Richmond.  It is going 
somewhere else.  Look at the place where they got the shrubbery.  If the money stayed here 
in the county and we hired our own people to do these jobs we could have done them at a 
third of the price and if the money was spent here he wouldn’t have nearly as bad a taste in 
his mouth as taking the money and shipping it to somebody else or letting somebody come 
in and take it away from us.  The citizens are being ripped off twice. 
 
Chairman Jones asked if there were any other comments. 
 
Supervisor Phillips made a motion, seconded by Supervisor Faison to pay the bills in the 
amount of $1,351,404.36 to be paid by check numbers 125845 through 126252.   All were 
in favor with the exception of Supervisor Updike voting nay.  
 
Chairman Jones stated we would go to item number five – appointments. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson stated as you recall from last month, FSEDI is seeking nominations 
for their Board of Directors.  Their organizational bylaws provide that the Board of 
Supervisors shall submit a slate of three nominees, one of which will be elected to serve.  
Mr. Harrell Turner, our current representative on the Board was nominated last month.  
Supervisor Faison has given him a call with a prospective nominee.  Again you can have a 
total of three that are submitted. 
 
 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
Chairman Jones asked the Board what they wanted to do.  He asked if they wanted to have 
three. 
 
Supervisor Updike said he would like to put in a nomination of Mr. Randolph Cook.   
 
Supervisor West said if that takes a second he would second that motion. 
 
Supervisor Faison said he would like to nominate Mr. Robert Rudzik. 
 
Chairman Jones said let’s take care of Mr. Randolph Cook first.  He called for the vote to 
nominate Mr. Randolph Cook for this position.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Supervisor Phillips said Mr. Chairman we aren’t appointing him we are giving FSEDI 
these names. 
 
Chairman Jones said we are still appointing. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson said we are nominating not appointing. 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Mr. Richard Railey the appointment will be made from the list of nominees. 
 
Chairman Jones said Mr. Randolph Cook will be appointed. 
 
Supervisor West said nominated. 
 
Chairman Jones said Mr. Randolph Cook will be nominated.  He said he was way out 
there. 
 
Supervisor Edwards said we know what you are talking about. 
 
Chairman Jones said he is being nominated to the Economic Development Board. 
 
Supervisor Phillips it is a slate of nominees so can we just vote on all three of them.   
 
Chairman Jones said let’s do it all at once. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson said you have already done one. 
 
Chairman Jones said we need to vote on Mr. Harrell Turner. 
 
Supervisors West and Edwards said he had already been voted on. 
 
Chairman Jones said so we need to vote on Mr. Robert Rudzik. 
 
Supervisor West said asked Supervisor Faison wasn’t Mr. Robert Rudzik his motion. 
 
Supervisor Faison said yes. 
 
Supervisor West said he was going to second that motion. 
 
Chairman called for a vote on Mr. Robert Rudzik to be nominated to the Economic 
Development Board which passed unanimously. 
 
Supervisor Phillips asked about Mr. Randolph Cook. 
 
Chairman Jones said we already did him. 
 
Supervisor West said got Mr. Randolph Cook.  
 
Mr. Michael Johnson said item B is the Administrative Board – Department of Social 
Services.  He said that Mrs. Michelle Stivers has indicated to me that the term of their 
Board Chairman, Sharon Ricks, will expire at the end of June.  Because she has already 
served 2 terms, she in ineligible for reappointment.  It is my understanding that Supervisor 
Phillips is seeking a nominee to succeed Ms. Ricks.   
 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
Supervisor Phillips said he had a meeting with Mrs. Michelle Stivers.  He said he had a 
tour of the Department of Social Services.  He said she expressed concern that she needed 
somebody.  Tonight he is prepared to nominate Mr. Moses Wyche who has served on that 
Board in the past to fill that position.   
 
Supervisor West seconded the motion with carried unanimously. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson stated that in addition, Supervisor Faison is the Board of Supervisors’ 
liaison to the DSS Administrative Board.  His term will also expire at the end of June – he 
is eligible for reappointment.   
 
Supervisor Edwards said Supervisor Faison has done an excellent job so he thought he 
should stay on there.  Supervisor Edwards made a motion that Supervisor Faison be 
reappointed to the DSS Administrative Board. 
 
Supervisor Phillips seconded the motion which carried unanimously. 
 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Mr. Michael Johnson stated there was one final appointment to be made.  He apologized 
that it did not make your agenda.  Mrs. Michelle Stivers also made him aware that Mrs. 
Barbara Ellsworth term will expire at the end of June and she is eligible for reappointment.  
She represents the Drewryville District. 
 
Supervisor Edwards made a motion that Mrs. Barbara Ellsworth be reappointed. 
 
Supervisor Faison seconded the motion which carried unanimously. 
 
Chairman Jones stated that we would move to item number 6 – Public Hearings. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson said the first public hearing tonight is held pursuant to 15.2-2204, 
Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended to receive public comment on a request by Lloyd and 
Trina Johnson, owners, for a change in zoning designation from A-1, Agricultural, to CRR, 
Conditional Rural residential to create one single family residential lot.  The parent 
property is located on the west side of Plank Road (Rte. 35) at its intersection with 
Wakefield Road (Rte. 628).  The proposed lot is approximately five (5( acres in size and is 
located approximately 650’ north of the intersection of Plank Road and Wakefield Road.  
The property is known as Tax parcel 44-28A is in the Capron Voting and Jerusalem 
Magisterial Districts. The notice of this public hearing was published in the Tidewater 
news on May 13 and May 20, 2012 and all adjacent property owners were notified in 
writing by first class mail as required by law.  Following its public hearing on March 8, 
2012, the Southampton County Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend 
approval of the request, subject to the proffered condition.   After conclusion of this public 
hearing, the Board of Supervisors will consider the comments offered this evening and may 
act upon the matter or defer action until such time as it deems appropriate.  Mrs. Beth 
Lewis, our Director of Community Development and Secretary to the Planning 
Commission will provide introductory remarks after which all interested parties are invited 
to come forward and express their views.   
 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
Mrs. Beth Lewis said the piece of property was part of a larger piece that was owned by 
International Paper and it has divested over the years.  The entire piece that the Johnsons   
own which is just over 40 aces which if this is approved will retain its A-1 Agricultural 
Zoning Designation.  It has been timbered so it is cutover.  The back part of the property is 
in the flood plain, but not the part that they have pulled out to put their house on.  Their 
rear property backs up to the mussel, but this property is not in the flood plain.  There were 
no comments at the Planning Commission meeting and the Planning Commission made a 
unanimous recommendation of approval.  This meets all the requirements for the rural 
residential zoning designation.  If you have driven up Plank Road and seen where the sign 
is you will see there is a driveway already there.  She stated she would be glad to answer 
any questions. 
 
Supervisor Edwards said this looks like a very appropriate place to put a house.  It wasn’t 
prime agricultural land to begin with so we aren’t losing anything from primary 
agricultural land.  The proffer was paid and it was done on a sliding scale.  The only 
question that was brought up was something about land use taxation.  He asked Mr. 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Michael Johnson if that had been checked on.  Whoever owned this property before would 
come under the land use taxation where they would have to pay the penalty. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson said the roll-back tax. 
 
Supervisor Edwards said the roll-back. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson said correct.  He thought the question was who paid it and he thinks 
Mr. Richard Railey has answered that it was subject to negotiation between the buyer and 
the seller. 
 
Mr. Richard Railey said that is correct.  The general practice would be that when it rolls 
back five years it would be a negotiation between the buyer and the seller.  He stated that 
both are liable for it. 
 
Supervisor Edwards asked if that had been settled. 
 
Mr. Richard Railey said he didn’t know.  It was up to these people.  He said he didn’t 
know if they had closed on it or not. 
 
Supervisor West said the treaty was broken by the owner of the property to begin with 
because the man purchasing it was purchasing it as it is and he could see a negotiation 
there but still the treaty to buy and sell that property was broken by the first party, the ones 
who owned that land to begin with.  It looks like to him it should go back to the first party 
like you said subject to negotiation. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson said the roll-back taxes would be assessed by the Commissioner’s 
Office.  It will be assessed to the current owner.  Now whether that current owner will go 
back to the former owner he didn’t know. 
 
Supervisor Edwards said in other words it has been taken care of. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson said that is correct. 
 
Supervisor West said that when the buyer signs that paper to transfer ownership he should 
be notified of that. 
 
Supervisor Faison said the assessment and obligation to the county would go to the current 
owner and the county would not go back to the previous owner at all. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson said that’s correct. 
 
Chairman Jones opened the public hearing for anyone for or against this application. 
 
There being no one to speak Chairman Jones closed the public hearing. 
 
Supervisor Edwards said he recommended they go ahead and go with the Planning 
Commission’s recommendation. The Planning Commission had a unanimous 
recommendation and everything was in order.  He didn’t see any problems with it and they 
didn’t either.  He made a motion to accept the Planning Commission recommendation and 
rezone the property. 
 
Supervisor Phillips seconded the motion which carried unanimously. 
 
Chairman Jones called for item B. Comprehensive Plan Agreement – William T. Kemp. 
 
Mr. Michael Johnson this public hearing relates to a comprehensive plan amendment.  This 
public hearing is held pursuant to 15.2-2204, Code of Virginia, 1950 as amended to receive 
public comment on a request by William T. Kemp, owner, for a change in Comprehensive 
Plan designation from Agriculture/Forestry/Open Space/Rural Residential to Commercial 
for a parcel known as a portion of Tax Parcel 70-1 and 2.  The parent property is located on 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

the north side of Southampton Parkway (US 58), 3,500’ east of its intersection with 
Drewry Road (Rte. 659).  The proposed lot is approximately 6.27 acres in size and is in the 
Drewryville Voting and Magisterial Districts. The notice of this public hearing was 
published in the Tidewater News on May 13 and May 20, 2012 and all adjacent property 
owners were notified in writing by first class mail as required by law.  Following its public 
hearing on April 12, 2012, the Southampton County Planning Commission voted 8-1 to 
recommend approval of the request.   After conclusion of this public hearing the Board of 
Supervisors will consider the comments offered this evening and may act upon the matter 
or defer action until such time as it deems appropriate.   Mrs. Beth Lewis, our Director of 
Community Development and Secretary to the Planning Commission will provide 
introductory remarks after which all interested parties are invited to come forward and 
express their views.   If the Board is so incline, a motion is required to accept the Planning 
Commission recommendation and amend the Comprehensive Plan designation. 
 

 
 
 
Mrs. Beth Lewis said this is a comprehensive plan amendment.  That area has a 
comprehensive plan designation of agricultural, forestry, open space, and rural residential.  
It abuts the eastern boundary of the Drewryville planning area.  It is just outside of the 



May 29, 2012 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Drewryville planning area.  Just to the east of this property is a cell tower so there is a curb 
cut in Southampton Parkway so traffic can get into and out of this property without making 
any U turns.  If you remember that stretch of highway there is the old Drewrvyille 
Elementary about a quarter of a mile east of Drewry Road which is no longer owned by 
Southampton County.  It is in private ownership.  In the year and a half that she had been 
in Community Development they had worked with the owners to at least keep it boarded 
up and keep the grass cut, but it is not any asset to Southampton County.  The hope is that 
if this property is developed, that the owner of the Drewryville Elementary School will say 
perhaps there is an opportunity for another business in that area.  It might spur 
redevelopment of that old elementary school.  There were quite a few comments at the 
Planning Commission Meeting.  There was a lot of discussion.  There are residents in the 
Drewryville area who were not in favor of this request.  The Planning Commission 
struggled with it and there was not a unanimous vote, but they understood their role in 
economic development and that although this property is by the time you take out the 
setbacks about five developable acres.  It will be a 2400 square foot restaurant with 40 
seats and five or six employees; it is not another IP, but it is economic development on the 
small scale.  Small businesses owners are the backbone of the American economic system 
so the Planning Commission did make a recommendation of approval on this 
comprehensive plan amendment.  It was a vote of 8 to 1 and the property owner is here.   
 
Chairman Jones asked if there were any questions for Mrs. Beth Lewis. 
 
Chairman Jones opened the public hearing for anyone for or against this application. 
 
Mr. William T. Kemp addressed the Board.  He stated that he lives in Virginia Beach 
although he owns several parcels here in Southampton County most of those being in the 
Drewryville District.  He said they are anticipating opening a small restaurant.  He said a 
local resident there Mrs. Romona Richards and he are in this as a joint venture.  They are 
hoping it will be successful.  What they are looking at is a breakfast and lunch situation 
only at this time.  They are anticipating 40 seats and that is contingent on the land use 
permits they get from the engineering studies.  With these 40 seats they anticipate hiring 
six people when they start.  These will hopefully be local hires.  He said they had extensive 
discussion on this before so he said he wasn’t going to burden us with all the details; 
however he did want to point out to us that they had received very favorable comments 
from most of the folks they had talked to.  He said he hadn’t heard any negative comments 
himself although he was aware of some being filtered.  When they started this venture they 
anticipated a very small, inexpensive restaurant that would have very good food and 
reasonable pricing.  The initial investment has gotten away and from an economic 
standpoint he would tell us where they are if this goes through.  The land item value they 
are guessing is going to be $150,000 and they would generate some revenue there.  Taxes, 
construction, engineering fees and permits and the like they are anticipating over $200,000 
that is going to be spent on this restaurant so they are going to have to sell a lot of biscuits.  
As mentioned earlier, there is already a turn lane going into this property directly in front.  
He said he talked to the engineers in Suffolk today relatively to VDOT and they are telling 
him they do not need a turn lane going eastward on the property, but they will put some 
type of apron in there.  He said he would entertain your questions should you have any. 
 
Chairman Jones asked if there were any questions for Mr. William T. Kemp.   
 
Supervisor Updike said you said tentative plan and that scares him.  If you are going to 
start off with breakfast and lunch, what is your total plan.   
 

Mr. William T. Kemp said thank you for that question.  He said they anticipate breakfast and lunch 
and they are hoping to open at 6:00 in the morning and close by 2:00 PM depending on what the 
traffic offers.  With talking to some of the local restaurant owners and restaurant owners in 
downtown Emporia and based on the information they are getting from them there is a need for 
this. The one community restaurant that we had closed and another one is closing and there is just 
not a place for locals to go and sit and have coffee in the mornings or to have a place to go eat and 
relax.  Also they anticipate that they will have a meeting place for local civic groups should they 
desire to use the restaurant it would be available even though they are closed.  After a few months 
they will be able to tell if it is  


